
Meeting of:  Heywood Township Committee
Date: Monday, 9th September, 2019
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Phoenix Centre - L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way,  

Heywood, OL10 1LR

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  CIVIC PRAYERS 

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

4.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

6.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township.

7.  MINUTES 3 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township 
Committee held on 10th June 2019.

8.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER - ROCHDALE ROAD EAST, 
HEYWOOD 

7 - 20

Members are asked to consider a report on Objections to Traffic Order 
- Rochdale Road East, Heywood.

Public Document Pack



9.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - ROCHDALE 
LANE AND BRIERLEY STREET, HEYWOOD 

21 - 55

Members are asked to consider a report on Objections to Traffic 
Regulation Order - Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street, Heywood.

10.  SPEEDING ON BURY OLD ROAD HEYWOOD 

For Members to receive a report on speeding on Bury Old Road 
Heywood.

11.  TOILET PROVISION IN HEYWOOD TOWN CENTRE 

Members will receive information on the provision of toilets in Heywood 
Town Centre.

12.  OLDER PERSONS CHAMPION REPORT 

The Township will receive the older persons champion report.

Heywood Township Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison

01706 924816



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 10 June 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Susan Emmott, Malcolm, McCarthy, O'Rourke, Robinson and Wardle

OFFICERS: Andrew Storey (Highways Directorate) Stuart Hay and John 
Addison (Resources Directorate).

1 APOLOGIES

There were no Apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business.

4 OPEN FORUM

The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum:- 

a) Speeding on Rochdale Road

A Member of the public raised a concern about speeding on Rochdale Road, 
which was excessive in a built up area, the use of high performance vehicles, 
revving engines and driving in an unsafe manor.

The Committee shared the residents concern and endorsed the request for a 
speed camera on that road as a starter to deter speeding. The Committee 
further asked what powers/options did it have at its disposal and requested 
the Council’s Highways department report back to a future meeting of the 
Township with a range of options.

The Chair invited the Council’s Portfolio Holder responsible for Highways to 
speak as he was in attendance. Councillor Neil Emmott acknowledged the 
concerns that had been raised and that he had raised this issue recently at 
Full Council. He stressed that more education was needed, as well as a way 
to log and prosecute drivers acting/driving dangerously.

A Police representative to the Township, stated that the Police did take action 
when possible and there was an issue with stolen vehicles.

b) Allotments

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



Mr Darwin, a resident returned to the Township to thank Officers for attending 
a walk around potential allotment sites with local residents. It was noted that a 
report was due back to a future meeting of the Township.

RESOLVED

That the Council’s Highways department report back to a future meeting of the 
Township with options to control excessive speeding on Rochdale Road and 
other roads with known speeding problems.

5 MINUTES

RESOLVED 

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Township Committee held on 11th 
March 2019 be agreed as a correct record.

6 HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW

The Township Committee considered a report from the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which presented a review of the Township revenue and 
capital expenditure during 2018/19 and provided options for the allocation of 
funds for 2019/20.

Members were also requested to consider the Heywood Township Funds 
terms and conditions and to agree delegation arrangements concerning 
funding decisions.

RESOLVED

1) That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2018/19 be 
noted;

2) That the findings of the review of Township Funds 2018/19) and 
evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded be noted;

3) That the allocation of Heywood Township Funds to funding streams in 
20197/20 be approved;

4) That the terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue and 
capital funds for 2019/20 be approved;

5) That the delegation arrangements for Heywood Township Funds 
2018/19 as detailed in the report be approved.

Page 4



7 HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2019/20

The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources 
which informed the Committee that at the start of each municipal year, the 
Committee was required to confirm its delegated decision making 
arrangements for the year and to make appointments to Township Sub- 
Committees, (including the Chair and Vice Chair) and other bodies as detailed 
within Appendix 2 of the report.

In considering the submitted report, it was noted that Councillor McCarthy had 
replaced Councillor Dutton during 2019/2020 on the East Lancashire Railway 
Trust.

RESOLVED

1) That the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee be retained on 
the terms of reference as set out in Appendix 1 of the submitted report;

2) That all Members of the Heywood Township Committee be appointed 
to the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee with Councillors 
Rush and Dutton being appointed as Chair and Vice Chair respectively;

3) That appointments be made to the other bodies as detailed in Appendix 
2 to the report as follows:-

East Lancashire Railway Trust

a) Mr B Davies
b) Councillor McCarthy - for 1 year

Heywood Magic Market Board

a) Councillor Dutton
b) Councillor Susan Emmott
c) Councillor Malcom
d) Councillor Rush

Township Older Persons Champion

a) Councillor Robinson

Township Highways Champion

b) Councillor Rush

Page 5



8 PROVISION OF PEDESTRIAN CROSSING ON BURY OLD ROAD

The Head of Capital Projects & Highways was welcomed to the meeting to 
provide Members with an update on the provision of a pedestrian crossing on 
Bury Old Road.

It was noted that the Council had received a request from the local Grammar 
School for a school crossing patrol officer as there had not been one on Bury 
Old Road for the past 12 months.

The Head of Capital Projects & Highways was please to inform the Township 
that an officer of the Council was willing to fill the post from September in time 
for the beginning of the new academic year when her current contract ended.

Members welcomed the news and enquired if the Officer could start sooner if 
it was possible, as there were still a number of weeks before the end of term.
The Officer agreed to take this back and inform the Chair of the outcome.

RESOLVED

That the update be noted and the Chair be informed if the school patrol officer 
could start earlier.

9 TOILET PROVISION IN HEYWOOD TOWN CENTRE

It was agreed by all present that this item be deferred until the next meeting of 
the Township.

RESOLVED

That the item be deferred.

Page 6



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 9th September 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author David Godley
Public/Private Document Public

Objections to Traffic Order - Rochdale Road East, Heywood

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

Proposed extensions of existing No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on the 
north side of Rochdale Road East (A58) and to introduce waiting restrictions 
on the south side of Rochdale Road East at its junction with Harefield Drive 
have been advertised and four objections were received.

This report explains the background to the proposal and comments upon the 
points made by the objectors to assist the Committee in coming to a decision 
whether to implement, and to what extent the Order may be introduced.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.126)
Order be

-  implemented as advertised, or
-  referred for Cabinet to determine should the Committee not feel fully

able to support the proposal.

It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be
introduced as advertised to address the issue of indiscriminately and 
dangerously parked vehicles which cause difficulty for motorists by reducing 
available road width along Rochdale Road East.

It is further recommended by Highways Officers that the Order should be 
introduced to cover the short section of Rochdale Road East at its junction 
with Harefield Drive which is part of the same proposed Order to address 
indiscriminate parking issues which obstructs visibility at the junction.

Reason for Recommendation

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.1.9

Copy of Statement of Reasons:

Rochdale Road East – This road is part of the strategic highway network 
situated to the east of Heywood town centre in North Heywood Ward.

Rochdale Road East (A58) – North Side - There are currently existing No 
Waiting At Any Time restrictions in place along Rochdale Road East to 
protect its junctions, with Gorton Street, Orchard Street and Barley Hall 
Street. 
 
Indiscriminate and dangerous parking to the north side of this road causes 
difficulty for motorists by restricting available road width.  The present 
restrictions also only extend for 15 metres from its junction with Orchard 
Street, beyond which vehicles are often parked on the footpath and road, 
hindering traffic flow and causing an obstruction and danger to pedestrians 
and to the School Crossing Patrol operating in this area. 
 
It is therefore the intention to extend No Waiting At Any Time restrictions from 
Gorton Street to its junction with an un-named access, situated some 104 
metres northeast of the junction with Barley Hall Street. 

Rochdale Road East (A58) – South Side – Indiscriminate parking to the 
south side of this road, at its junction with Harefield Drive, causes reduced 
side visibility for motorists when exiting Harefield Drive onto Rochdale Road 
East.  There are currently no restrictions in place at this location. 
 
It is the intention to introduce No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on 
Rochdale Road East, at its junction with Harefield Drive, to keep the junction 
clear of parked vehicles.  This will in turn allow for clearer sightlines and safer 
movement for vehicles exiting from Harefield Drive onto Rochdale Road East.

Rochdale Road East (A58) Proposals:

North Side - Extend the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions from Gorton 
Street to its junction with an un-named access, situated some 104 metres 
northeast of the junction with Barley Hall Street.

South Side - Introduce No Waiting At Any Time restrictions from a point 10 
metres west of its junction with Harefield Drive to a point 10 metres east of its 
junction with Harefield Drive.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

Rochdale Road East (A58) forms part of the National Primary Route Network 
and is therefore a route of national significance and carries approximately 
17,000 vehicles, on average each day.

These proposals received four objections, which are from persons whose 

Page 8



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

parking preferences are affected by the proposals.

The Council in its role as Highway Authority, has a duty of care to ensure the
safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act
2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

The plan in Appendix A, shows the proposed increases in restrictions to the 
north side and the new proposed restrictions to the south side of Rochdale 
Road East. 

The increase of the restrictions to the north side is felt necessary to keep 
Rochdale Road East clear of indiscriminately parked vehicles and allow the 
Network to operate more efficiently.

It is clear from observations that motorists parking on the northerly side of 
Rochdale Road East are conscious that they are hindering the flow of traffic, 
as they mount the footway to park their vehicle often obstructing the footway 
for pedestrians, some of whom will be Children and parents heading to the 
nearby All Souls C of E Primary School.

A School Crossing Patrol operates at this location and concerns have been 
raised regarding parked vehicles hindering the safe operation of the crossing 
patrol. 

All four objectors make reference to their perceived loss of customary parking 
close to or directly outside their home or business.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only
right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it.

The objection regarding the proposals along the South side of Rochdale Road 
East does not acknowledge that there are junction visibility or safety issues 
present at this location for either drivers or pedestrians.

By removing some parked vehicles from the junction with Harefield Drive it will 
give clearer visibility of and for drivers exiting onto Rochdale Road East in a 
safer manner.

Two of the four objections highlight the need to load/unload at a business 
situated on the north side of Rochdale Road East and concerns regarding the 
ability to continue to do if the proposals are implemented.

The No Waiting At Any Time restrictions proposed for both the north and south 
side of Rochdale Road East (A58) will not prohibit any of

 Stopping to load/unload 
 Allowing a passenger to board/alight 
 The disabled blue badge ‘3 hours parking concession’

Alternatives Considered

The measures proposed are the minimum believed necessary to alleviate 

Page 9



4.16

4.17

4.18

identified safety and visibility issues at the junction of Rochdale Road East and 
Harefield Drive.  

The measures proposed to extend the existing restrictions along the north side 
of Rochdale Road East are the minimum believed necessary to alleviate the 
issue of indiscriminate parking which currently reduces available road width 
and causes an obstruction and danger to pedestrians and to the School 
Crossing Patrol in this area.

Officers from Highways are of the opinion that by reducing the proposals or 
not implementing will not address the safety concerns they aim to address.

Appendix D – Is the response to objections received regarding the proposals 
and covers concerns raised.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is estimated to be £5000 
and will be met by the Heywood Township Capital fund.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 
and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.1

Consultation

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 

21st February 2019.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper 
on 9th May 2019 – See Appendix B.

The objection period ran until 30th May 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: David Godley, 
david.godley@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 10



APPENDIX A – Rochdale Road East (A58) 

Scheme plan as advertised

Page 11



TRO Ref No H60/1292 APPENDIX B – Notice of Intention

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO.57) ORDER

ROCHDALE ROAD EAST, HEYWOOD

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its 
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to 
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(1) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting at Any Time

Rochdale Road East, North Heywood Ward

n(i) the north side from its junction with Gorton Street to a point 104 metres 
northeast of its junction with Barley Hall Street

n(ii) the south side from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Harefield Drive to 
a point 10 metres east of its junction with Harefield Drive

(2) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting at Any Time

Rochdale Road East, North Heywood Ward
(ii) the north side from its junction with Gorton Street to a point 79 metres east of its 

junction with Gorton Street

(iii) the north side from its junction with Orchard Street to a point 15 metres west of 
its junction with Orchard Street

(iv) the north side from its junction with Orchard Street to a point 15 metres east of 
its junction with Orchard Street

(vi) the north side from its junction with Barley Hall Street for a distance of 15 metres 
in a westerly direction

(vii) the northern side from its junction with Barley Hall Street for a distance of 15 
metres in an easterly direction

A copy of the proposed Order and maps showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at the Customer Services Centre, Heywood Library, L/Cpl Stephen Shaw M.C. 
Way, Heywood, OL10 1LL during normal office hours, or viewed on the Council’s website 
www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 0300 303 8879.

Page 12

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads


Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 
1XU to reach the Council on or before 30th May 2019, quoting H60/1292.

Dated this 9th day of May 2019

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce).

Corporate Services,
Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 13

mailto:trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX C – Objections Received

Objector 1                 . 
   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     .

Details of objection

Objector’s comments written as received

Subject: In regards to Ref No H60/1292
 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I am writing in concern of     . Rochdale Road East, Heywood, Lancs, OL10     . and the 
shop I run there named Wallers bathroom supplies 

I came to find out about the proposed addition of double yellow lines out side my shop by 
a recent customer who lives around the corner who saw the notice down the street attached 
to a post out of view ,as he passed with his dog and stated to me (it will effect my 
business) so I went to have a look and saw the notice so I called the number straight away 
to find out what was going on as I had not been informed about something that would 
massively effect my business . I had waited 2 weeks for a return phone call of somebody to 
find out what was going on and if some sort of permit / notice to put in vehicles windows 
could be looked into,

as I only need 25-30 mins loading to be allowed . The phone call never got returned even 
tho the office said it would take 2-3 days to get back to me by email or phone. 

It was only on the 28th may 2019 I rang up to chase up what was going on and I was 
finally passed to somebody in a different department who stated they had no information 
of me ringing up and they hadn’t been passed the information on from the office which is 
very poor service and where have my details been passed to with data protection ?

Only on this phone call I was told that I had to email in or write in and nobody could help 
over the phone with my issue , by this time there was only 2 days left so no time to get my 
solicitor to do a professional letter (the reason why this email is very rushed) being told the 
notice was on street furniture and in local paper which I do not read and I don’t walk any 
we’re near the post it is on and not my duty to check posts weekly for notices which could 
close my business. Very poor service towards a small busines which is going to be effected 
, no decency of speaking to me regards what was being issued and why.

I open by appointment for customers I do not open 9-5, so the parking is not an issue all 
the time, it would only be needed when customers are filling there cars or vans with heavy 
items from the shop Which is not a 5 minute job this does not include light ones as they 
can be carried . Or when I get a large delivery of 30+ items which are placed around the 
shop upon delivery due to being large items and a 2 person job and only me being there as 
the only staff and help off the delivery drivers . some items into the basement and again 
isn’t a 5 min job to simply unload due to easily getting damaged. It is impossible to 
continually load as the items are in different places and there’s not enough room in the 
shop to get the full van emptied . Items as ready as possible before loading and unloading 
but due to being 2 person job most of them this is a 25-30min job normally . It is not safe 

Page 14



from Health and safety side to carry items down the street or across the road. Where there 
is very often no parking . as all taken by people who live there and impossible to cross 
with the heavy items when traffic flys down the road at speed which is already very 
dangerous . Even when my customers are parked outside loading there is still more than 
enough room for 2 vehicles to pass easily . no crashes have happened when parked cars 
only when the road is clear and people speed, so this is not solving a problem it is creating 
a bigger problem . And could easily cause a death if clearing the road all the way down. 

In the 2 years I have been in the shop the police have had footage of 14 crashes / accidents 
on that road due to people speeding down when the road is clear , vehicles being damaged 
/ written off , My cameras on the shop always see this speeding every day and people’s 
cars on the street who live there get damaged and very dangerous as there’s a school down 
the next street, so to opening the road clear so people can speed down is more dangerous 
accidents waiting to happen and very silly for the council to do , as much as the cars 
maybe a nuisance every few days or so stopping for a short period of time ,the slowing 
down of traffic is a positive effect and also when my van was parked across the road 
earlier this year where the parking is allowed and still is going to be allowed it got crashed 
into when the road was quite due to a vehicle speeding. People living on the side where 
parking is being allowed ,park on the opposite side due to Insufficient parking spaces and 
to slow the traffic down also . 

I ask that the double yellow lines along this short distance to be re thought as the danger it 
will cause . And closure of my shop and loss of income to my landlord who relies on it for 
his retirement , and having the occasional vehicle parked along this stretch benefits local 
residents in a way of reducing speeding. If cars are there it restricts dangerous driving. 
This can be an unsafe part of the road at the best of times.

There is a post box along this pavement and a litter bin which Both require emptying so 
will stop people being able to use these or even empty them or does it not count for the 
council ect to get a ticket ?

There is no benefits of a 'No waiting at any time' being imposed along this stretch. If 
anything, it is likely the encourage speeding, making it a much more dangerous stretch of 
road. Especially with a primary school just a couple of hundred metres down Barley Hall 
street. - There is a lollipop lady but only there at key school times who already struggles 
due to people speeding down the road !

A permit would help me ,to put in customers cars for the time they are stopped or a small 1 
space zone out side the shop where people could stop for less than 30 mins to load ? 

Even when a vehicle is parked slightly on the kerb a pram  or automated wheel chair can 
still easily pass which I always make sure of. Also when a vehicle is loading ,2 vehicles on 
the road can easily pass . Also telling a parking warden that the vehicle is loading doesn’t 
happen, as they do not listen and are not fair especially when getting the next item to load 
into the vehicle from the shop where they are stored . Items are as ready as possible but not 
able to be all stored at door for fire safety and not able to pile all on kerb either .

Thank you for reading my email and look forward to the reply 

Yours Faithfully, 
                . 

Page 15



Objector 2
                . 

   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     .

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Subject:, TRO Ref No H60/1292

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I write on behalf or my father, Mr    ., the owner of    .  Rochdale Road East, Heywood, 
Lancs, OL10    .  and his loyal tenant, of the same address, Mr    ..

   .  has run 'Waller's Bathroom Supplies',  a growing and successful business, from these 
premise for a number of years now and relies on the ability to park outside of the property 
to load and unload bathroom furniture. He also has customers viewing by appointment 
who need to be able to load their vehicles outside of the shop as many of the items sold are 
bulky and/or heavy.

Putting double yellow lines along the stretch of road between Orchard Street and (running 
East) Barley Hall Street is likely to severely affect    .  business and, in turn, my fathers 
rental income. 

We ask that the double yellow lines along this short distance be reconsidered. 

We strongly believe that having the occasional vehicle parked along this stretch benefits 
local residents in a way of reducing speeding. If cars are there it restricts dangerous 
driving. This can be an unsafe part of the road at the best of times.

There is also the matter of other local amenities such as the post box along this pavement 
and the litter bin used. Both of these require emptying and maintenance. 

We can not see a benefit of a 'No waiting at any time' being imposed along this stretch. If 
anything, it is likely the encourage speeding, making it a much more dangerous stretch of 
road. Especially with a primary school just a couple of hundred metres down Barley Hall 
street. - There is a lollipop attendee but only there at key school times and not for before 
and after school clubs.

Thank you for taking the time to read this email, we look forward to hearing back from 
you in due course. 

Yours Faithfully,

   .
   .
   .

Page 16



Objector 3
                . 

   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     ..

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Subject: Disagree TRO Ref No H60/1292

Dear officers:

My name is    ., I have lived in    . Rochdale road east, heywood OL10    . with my two young 
daughters over four years. I have read notice Ref No H60/1292 from Rochdale Council which 
mean we cannot park outside of our door. We are so sad to hear this and disagree it. 

We don't have any car park base  in my garden. I had tried to park my car at opposite the road but I 
had received a hand writing paper from my opposite neighbour. They said that is outside of their 
house so there are belong to them. Also I had tried to park  next street which name is Barley Hall 
ST but the owner of shop said there is his loading area.

I have two young children who need go to different schools on every morning. If I park  my car too 
far, I worried they will go to school late also the roads are very busy on the morning which isn't 
safety for my children.

We appeal  to  stop Ref No H60/1292, We need a little area for our car.

Yours sincerely 
   .   .

                                   
            

Page 17



Objector 4
                . 

   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     ..

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

REF: TRO H60/1292

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE 
(CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008
AMENDMENT (NO.57) ORDER

ROCHDALE ROAD EAST HEYWOOD

Dear Counsellors,

We are writing to object to the proposal schedule 1.1 – no waiting time, Rochdale Road 
East n(ii) the south side from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Harefield Drive to 
a point 10 metres east of its junction with Harefield Drive.

We reside at number    .  Rochdale Road East in a row of houses starting from the bottom 
of Chadwick Lane to Harefield Drive.  In the row are 8 houses, then 2 semi-detached 
houses and the lodge at the bottom of Harefield Drive.  Three of the row of houses have 
double yellow lines at the front of the property (bottom of Chadwick Lane).  We are 
objecting to the proposal on account that if this is passed there is absolutely nowhere to 
park.

If you take a walk around the area at night you will witness that parking along Rochdale 
Road East is at a premium.  Residents on the road are unable to park on Barley Hall 
Street and Chadwick Lane (this has been compounded by the erection of the alley gates 
on Chadwick Land as the residents now park on the road rather than park in their 
garage’s/ parking space at the back of the houses).  

The residents in these houses affected on Rochdale Road East are considerate to each 
other when parking, but visitors of the residential home and now the church often park 
where ever there is a space available.

We understand the Harefield Drive residents requesting double yellow lines but your 
policy will squeeze our ability to park on the main road therefore causing potential conflict 
with residents on Chadwick Lane and Barley Hall Street.

The planning officers have cited a number of reasons why the proposal should be 
approved - Indiscriminate parking to the south side of the road at its junction with 
Harefield Drive.  I dispute this as residents of Rochdale Road East endeavour to park 
safely.  If there has been the occasion that someone has parked on the junction of 
Harefield Drive then these are visitors to the area.  When this occurs then surely this is a 
Police issue not a traffic enforcement issue.

We have been advised by an officer of the Council that they have to enforce Rule 243 of 
the Highway Code which states no parking opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a 
junction, except in an authorised parking space.  This is advisory only and I go back to the 
point that if there is inappropriate parking then this should be a Police matter.

Further reasons given is that there has been one recorded injury accident in the last three 
years at this location stating that the accident occurred in 2017 on Rochdale Road East at 
its junction with Chadwick Lane and was the result of a vehicle exiting Chadwick Lane and 

Page 18



colliding with a vehicle travelling along Rochdale Road East.  I just need too point out that 
the double yellow lines were already in place at the bottom of Chadwick Lane when this 
accident happened.  

Rather than making the road more dangerous for the residents of Rochdale Road East 
there are other measures that you can consider.  We have asked for a speed camera in 
the areas but this has been rejected. You could also look at other traffic calming 
measures rather than continually penalising the residents of Rochdale Road East. Or if 
someone is parked and causing an obstruction then the Police should ask for that vehicle 
to be fined or removed.

We would welcome the opportunity to discuss this issue with the decision makers 
therefore please could you advise me of when this will be considered under council 
business.  

Yours faithfully 

             .          .           .    

Page 19



APPENDIX D – Response to Objections

There are competing demands for on-street parking spaces in this area given its 
location adjacent to residential properties and businesses.  The Council appreciate 
that the availability of parking in areas such as this is important and will always try to 
maintain parking where possible. However, concerns have been raised regarding the 
areas of highway that the objectors wish to remain un-restricted in relation to parked 
vehicles hindering visibility of drivers, hindering the safe operation of the crossing 
patrol, reducing available road width and causing an obstruction and danger to 
pedestrians and to the School Crossing Patrol operating in this area.   

Although residents and some businesses may be affected by a proposal in terms of 
their parking arrangements, it should also be borne in mind that the only right the 
general public has on the highway is the right of passage along it. The Council is not 
responsible for creating or maintaining on-street parking places for residents or 
businesses. The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of 
care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and to maintain the expeditious 
movement of traffic, which has to take precedence over the provision of on-street 
parking places.

The desire to park directly outside of residential properties conflicts with Rochdale 
Road East’s status as a classified road and strategic route.

Half of all objections received relate to Wallers Bathroom Supplies.  They believe 
that the proposed restrictions will severely affect the business in terms of the 
availability for the business and customers to load and unload accordingly. 

The proposed No Waiting At Any Time restrictions will not prohibit any of - Stopping 
to load/unload, Allowing a passenger to board/alight, The disabled blue badge ‘3 
hours parking concession’

At present vehicles are prevented from travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.

Removal of parked vehicles does not in itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to make normal unhindered progress.

In considering the scheme attention should be given to the road safety benefits of 
the restrictions around the junctions, which improve visibility for motorists negotiating 
them.

In summary, the Council believe that the restrictions are justified to support and 
protect access rights along the highway, at its junctions and to remove parked 
vehicles from the footway.

Page 20



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 9th September 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author Andrew Cowell
Public/Private Document Public

Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Rochdale Lane and Brierley 
Street, Heywood

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

A request was received from Heywood Township for the Council to 
investigate the introduction of parking restrictions on Rochdale Lane and 
Brierley Street in Heywood. It was reported that indiscriminate parking 
occurs in this location which impacts primarily on goods vehicle movements.

A scheme was advertised and during the consultation period the Council 
received 82 letters of objection to the proposal plus a petition signed by 548 
people.

In general, the objectors report that the restrictions are too extensive and will 
reduce space for residents and visitors to local shops and facilities, in 
particular the fish and chip shop at Manchester Road.

The report outlines the reason for the proposal, the objections received and 
a response to the objections.

Recommendation

2. The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.58) 
Order be implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in light 
of the representations received, which are outlined in Appendix B of this 
report. It is the recommendation of Officers that the objections be dismissed 
and the proposal introduced as advertised.

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



Reason for Recommendation

3. Copy of Statement of Reasons

The Highways and Engineering Service of the Council has been commissioned by 
Heywood Township to investigate the introduction of new parking restrictions at 
Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street, Heywood. It is reported that indiscriminate 
parking occurs in this location which impacts primarily on goods vehicle movements.

Rochdale Lane, Brierley Street and Vale Street are unclassified local access roads 
located close to Heywood town centre. The properties in this area are a mix of 
residential and industrial. The owners of three industrial premises have made 
complaints that parked vehicles in the area hinder their daily operations in terms of 
goods vehicle movements. There have also been reports of goods vehicles causing 
accidental damage when trying to pass indiscriminately parked vehicles, although as 
these are deemed damage only incidents the Council have no record of them as our 
statistics only cover personal injury accidents.

The majority of the roads are unrestricted except for waiting restrictions at the 
junctions of Rochdale Lane / Manchester Street, Brierley Street / Rochdale Road 
and a short section of daytime restriction along part of Vale Street.

Goods vehicle movements along both Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street and 
around the junction itself are compromised by the presence of parked vehicles. 
Visibility is also affected at the junction for both pedestrians and vehicles using these 
junctions.

The proposal is to introduce new restrictions around the junction of Rochdale Lane 
and Brierley Street and along sections of each length of road in order to ensure that 
goods vehicle access and egress is not affected for each business. Existing Mon-Sat 
8am-6pm restrictions on Vale Street will be upgraded to 24 hour waiting restrictions 
to accord with guidance set out in the Highway Code with regard to parking at 
junctions.

It is not considered that the restrictions should have a major impact on the parking 
arrangements of local residents due to the small number of properties in the area 
and the number of remaining un-restricted on-street spaces available.

The Police Injury Accident Database shows no recorded injury accidents in the 
vicinity of the proposed restrictions over the past 5 years.

It is proposed to promote new prohibition of waiting restrictions on Rochdale Lane, 
Brierley Street and Vale Street, as detailed on the accompanying plan.

The proposed restrictions will improve visibility for motorists using the junction and 
improve access for goods vehicles.

3.2 To address the issues reported, it is necessary to introduce the proposed 
Order as originally advertised (see Appendix A).

Page 22



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

During the consultation period the Authority received 82 objection letters and 
a petition.

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 the Authority must consider all objections 
submitted during the consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic 
Regulation Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is 
deemed non-strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with 
Section 8.2-3 of the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. 
Committee has delegated power to confirm or abandon the proposals and 
the Order.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only 
right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. 
The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of care 
to ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic 
Management Act 2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix B and C of this report.

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could consider recommending that the proposal be 
amended or abandoned. If the Committee decide to amend the order it may 
require re-advertising. 

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then the 
issues with parked vehicles, which were reported to Heywood Township 
Committee, will not be addressed.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order will be met by Heywood 
Township Fund. The estimated cost is £4000.

Should the Committee decide to amend the proposals, this may require the 
re-advertising of the order which would incur additional costs which would 
require further funding from Township.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 

Page 23



and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

Consultation

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted 
on 10th June 2019.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local 
newspaper on 13th June 2019.

The objection period ran until 4th July 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection
None

Page 24



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and plan

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 58) ORDER

Rochdale Lane, Brierley Street and Vale Street, Heywood

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its 
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to 
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(i) amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Rochdale Lane, North Heywood Ward

n(iii) the south-east side from a point 10 metres south-west of its junction with 
Brierley Street to its junction with Vale Street

n(iv) the north-west side from a point 10 metres south-west of its junction with 
Brierley Street to a point 25 metres north-east of its junction with Brierley Street

n(v) the north-west side from a point 58 metres north-east of its junction with Brierley 
Street for a distance of 28 metres in a north-easterly direction

Brierley Street, North Heywood Ward

n(iii) the south-west side from a point 30 metres south-east of its junction with 
Rochdale Lane to a point 15 metres north-west of its junction with Rochdale Lane

n(iv) the south-west side from its junction with Smith Street for a distance of 10 
metres in a south-easterly direction

n(v) the north-east side from its junction with Rochdale Road to a point 30 metres 
south-east of its junction with Rochdale Lane

Vale Street, North Heywood Ward

n(i) the north side from its junction with Rochdale Lane for a distance of 19 metres in 
an easterly direction

 Smith Street, North Heywood Ward

n(i) the south-east side from its junction with Brierley Street for a distance of 10 
metres in a south-westerly direction

(ii) revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Page 25



Schedule No. 2.2
No Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

Vale Street, North Heywood Ward

(i) the north side from its junction with Rochdale Lane to a point 16 metres east of 
its junction with Rochdale Lane

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at the Customer Services Centre, Heywood Library, L/Cpl Stephen Shaw M.C. 
Way, Heywood, OL10 1LL during normal office hours, or viewed on the Council’s website 
www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 0300 303 8879.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 
1XU to reach the Council on or before 4th July 2019, quoting H60/1291.

Dated this 13th day of June 2019

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) 

Resources Directorate
Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 26

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads


Page 27



APPENDIX  B – Objections

1

I wish to object to the proposal to put double yellow on Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street. 
Ref H60/1291.
RMBC have a duty to support local businesses, but if this is allowed to go ahead, it will be 
the end of Tommy's Fish and Chips on the corner of Rochdale Lane and Manchester Road, 
to the detriment not only to a business that has been in Heywood for over 60 years, but to 
the local, and not-so-local, community. Not everyone who uses this business lives within 
walking distance, and there will be no-where at all to park to continue to do so. The nearest 
available free parking ,outside the civic hall, is too far away for some to walk, and useless to 
a business that relies on serving hot food.
Heywood Town Centre has lost enough small businesses in recent times, without adding to 
it un-necessarily without this ill thought out idea. The recent 3 hour max parking outside civic 
hall was driven by local businesses who were complaing that their customers were being 
driven away by lack of parking due to commuters taking the spaces, and this will do exactly 
the same thing, and should not happen.

2

Ref number H60/12914  the parking it needed it access business ie Tommy’s chippy there is 
no parking near by

3

Page 28



4

Page 29



Page 30



(Signed by 14 residents of Brierley Street)

5

Further to your recent notice in the Heywood Advertiser detailing yellow lines you are 
proposing to introduce on Rochdale Lane, Brierley Street and Smith Street in Heywood 
OL10,  I would like to strongly object to this proposal.  

We have our business premises on Rochdale Lane, PLP Construction Ltd and directly 

Page 31



employ 35 staff from the local area, of which some are based in our offices.  If you introduce 
the parking restrictions you are proposing  this will mean that none of our employees are 
able to park their vehicles outside our office, as they do now.  We will then be forced to park 
in front of residents properties on Brierley Street and Rochdale Lane which will affect their 
parking.  It will also affect local businesses such as Tommy’s Chippy as their customers park 
on Brierley Street and Rochdale Lane.

If these proposals go ahead we will be forced to re-assess our current business premises 
and move outside of the Heywood area, currently our staff live locally and also generate 
money for the local economy using local amenities – Heywood town centre shops, gym, food 
stores, cafes etc.  This will reduce significantly if we move to other premises.

In proposing these changes you have not considered at all the impact this is going to have 
on local businesses and residents.

6

7

Further to my emails below, I am emailing to express my strongest of objections to the 
proposed parking restrictions on Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street. 
 
Not only will these restrictions make it IMPOSSIBLE to park for residents and visitors  it will 
seriously damage the day-to-day running of several local businesses who contribute to the 
economy of Heywood. 
 
My husband’s family owns Tommy’s chippy – a business that has been there for 30 years 
and longer when it was owned by a previous family. Our buisness is not a corporate 
machine, it’s family run and relies on locals to keep us going. If you put these lines in place 
you will force us to shut as our customers will have NO WHERE to stop and park. You will 
taking the livelihood from all the families this business supports and will be robbing the town 

Page 32



of a business that is much loved. 
 
Our posts on Facebook into Remembering Heywood and Heywood Town groups have 
received so much support shares and comments and we KNOW the people of Heywood 
don’t want this to happen. You will shortly be receiving the petition in the post too with written 
proof of this fact. 
 
We are not opposed to lines being placed outside the haulage firm to improve the day-to-day 
running of their business but it’s senseless to place them all down Rochdale Lane and 
Brierley street! Even the haulage firm themselves are confused to why this has been done. 
Please compromise!!
 
Please, please, please listen to people in the town instead of ticking boxes. Restore 
confidence that the council is for the people and understands what the local residents 
actually want!  

North Heywood Councillors,

I am writing on behalf of the Killackey family, who own and run Tommy’s Chippy on 
Manchester Road, to vehemently oppose the proposed parking restrictions for Rochdale 
Lane and Brierley Street - having only been made aware of these plans yesterday (by 
another opposing local business).
 
This family business has been established for 27 YEARS, through thick and thin and the 
loyal support of customers, many of whom travel miles to visit the shop. As well as 
employing many local residents, this business also supports three separate households 
within the Killackey family. This haulage company has been running for 7 years and while we 
support local businesses having ease of access, the severity of these restrictions – and let’s 
be frank here – sheer favouritism you have shown these businesses whilst completely 
discounting others is verging on discrimination. 
 
As a champion of local business for 27 years, the Killackey family are not against easing 
access for the goods vehicles, but where is the compromise? In email correspondence with 
PLP Construction, Mr Cowell states ‘Businesses have a right to use these roads to access 
their own premises’. What about businesses whose use of these roads have a direct impact 
on their business?? A chippy is a drop-in, drop-out business – without ease of access, you 
are prohibiting this which will ultimately lead to the decline of the business and closure. Our 
number one question to you as the enforcer of these restrictions is, where do you propose 
we advise customers to park?????
 
It is abhorrent that LOCAL councils, who are supposed to hold the interests of ALL residents 
and businesses at the forefront of everything they do, are destroying the fabric of our LOCAL 
businesses who have worked tirelessly to establish a business that will be ruined by the lack 
of consideration, intelligence and local insight you have demonstrated in these plans. 

Maybe if you had given proper consideration to the parking situation before approving 
the development of The Gateway this situation could have been avoided completely. 
 
Together with other local businesses, we would welcome a meeting (one in which we are 
aware of this time) to discuss this in more detail, which we feel is the least we are owed. In 
the meantime, we will lobby support to challenge and fight these restrictions at every 
juncture. 

8

To Whom It May Concern

Page 33



I am writing to you with regards to the above proposed Traffic Order. 
Why oh why are you punishing a small business's. Tommys Chippy has been on the corner 
of Land End since time began, already having railings to around the pavement outside, the 
proposed double yellow lines will absolutely kill the business that the family have worked 
hard to succeed over many many years. The business has been in the family for over 60 
years, which is a rarity these days, you should be working with them not against them. 
There are residents in the area who will also fall foul of this proposal, where do they park - 
likely other areas which will cause more congestion on the main through road which is 
Manchester street / Road.
Please reconsider this proposal, think about the smaller man, the reason behind the 
proposal are not just, the area is mainly residential rather than industrial.
Think of your routes to a time when there was corner shops and independent bossiness 
rather than multi million pound company who dont care!

9

I would just like to show my support for NO yellow lines to be put on Rochdale Lane and 
Brierley Street. As a council aren’t you supposed to support local businesses ? where will 
people be able to park?well  this idea would kill a local landmark fish and chip shop, 
Tommy’s is one of the best chippies in the north west. Why are you putting yellow lines there 
in the first place? Other than to provide more money for Rochdale citizens you certainly do 
bugger all for Heywood people.

10

I am writing to you with regards to the above proposed Traffic Order. 
Why oh why are you punishing a small business's. Tommys Chippy has been on the corner 
of Land End since time began, already having railings to around the pavement outside, the 
proposed double yellow lines will absolutely kill the business that the family have worked 
hard to succeed over many many years. The business has been in the family for over 60 
years, which is a rarity these days, you should be working with them not against them. 
There are residents in the area who will also fall foul of this proposal, where do they park - 
likely other areas which will cause more congestion on the main through road which is 
Manchester street / Road.
Please reconsider this proposal, think about the smaller man, the reason behind the 
proposal are not just, the area is mainly residential rather than industrial.
Think of your routes to a time when there was corner shops and independent bossiness 
rather than multi million pound company who dont care!

11

With reference to the above case I wish to lodge my reasons for appeal;
a few small family businesses are being punished by the implementation of double yellow 
lines which will stop trade stopping in the town in this area - another case of the erosion of 
the local high street businesses - do you want to continue to drive people out of our town? 
b) - as someone with a permanent debilitating condition (which was recently deemed “not 
serious enough”) it seems perverse that the access to shops for the likes me are getting 
further away. 
The cynical view of this would appear to be that it is just another way of raising funds 
through fines through traffic enforcement. 
I look forward to hearing your views on this matter.

12

Dear sirs

Page 34



I wish to express my objections to the above proposed TRO on Rochdale Lane, Brierley St 
and Vale St, Heywood.

Heywood Baptist Church has a thriving Sunday congregation as well as a range of 
community activities during the week. Double yellow lines will have a severe impact on the 
ability of church users to park in the vicinity of the church on Sundays and weekdays. 

In addition, the imposition of double yellow lines on Brierley St will prevent customers of 
‘Tommy’s chippy’ parking close to the chipshop. Even single yellow lines Monday to Friday 
8am till 6pm would have a harmful effect on the local business. Even more importantly, the 
parking restrictions might well result in customers parking on the other side of Manchester 
Road and crossing the road. This is a dangerous road and has seen at least one near fatal 
RTA involving a young parishioner of mine. So I also oppose the TRO on the grounds of 
road safety.

13

Following on from the notice to put double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street 
(Ref: H60/1291). Can you please advise where we are supposed to park when we come to 
work? Outside residents houses? Why are you putting unnecessary double yellow lines 
down to prevent parking? 

The only time there is an issue is when random articulated vehicles try and drive down 
residential streets. The way to resolve this issue is to speak to the companies who have 
organised deliveries on oversized vehicles and tell them to be better organised. Surely this is 
way to resolve the issue instead of inconveniencing everyone else!

14

Further to your recent notice in the Heywood Advertiser detailing yellow lines you are 
proposing to introduce on Rochdale Lane, Brierley Street and Smith Street in Heywood 
OL10,  I would like to strongly object to this proposal.  

We have our business premises on Rochdale Lane, PLP Construction Ltd and directly 
employ 35 staff from the local area, of which some are based in our offices.  If you introduce 
the parking restrictions you are proposing  this will mean that none of our employees are 
able to park their vehicles outside our office, as they do now.  We will then be forced to park 
in front of residents properties on Brierley Street and Rochdale Lane which will affect their 
parking.  It will also affect local businesses such as Tommy’s Chippy as their customers park 
on Brierley Street and Rochdale Lane.

If these proposals go ahead we will be forced to re-assess our current business premises 
and move outside of the Heywood area, currently our staff live locally and also generate 
money for the local economy using local amenities – Heywood town centre shops, gym, food 
stores, cafes etc.  This will reduce significantly if we move to other premises.

In proposing these changes you have not considered at all the impact this is going to have 
on local businesses and residents.

15

In connection with the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane & Brierley St, I write 
to express my doubts that it will achieve anything positive and is more likely to create bigger 
issues outside residents houses.
Various businesses are operating in the area and I believe the introduction of this restriction 

Page 35



will affect their operation negatively. 
Cars parked as they are now, on the streets, act as a deterrent for cars travelling to reduce 
their speed – all to often these streets are used by speeding cars as a cut through from the 
main road .

16

Hi
I am writing to voice my concerns re double yellow line restrictions ref above.
I work at a local company and although office based I do need my car to visit sites. If they 
come into force I will have no choice but to park outside residents houses and I do not wish 
to upset them.
You should also consider the local chippy this is always busy and we do not need any further 
local businesses to disappear from Heywood.
You should reconsider this action

17

I am emailing with reference to the proposed Double yellow lines ref no H60/1291, I work on 
Rochdale lane and although I am office based I do need to use my vehicle on a regular 
basis. The proposed lines are around our building, so I would have no choice but to park my 
vehicle outside residents houses, where the restrictions do not apply.

I am also a regular visitor to Tommy’s chippy and should I not be able to park I am going to 
have to go elsewhere, this restrictions could seriously damage a local business.

Maybe instead of putting yellow line restrictions in place you should look at a weight and 
length of HGV’s that frequent the area on a regular basis, there has been many occasions 
where our vehicles have been clipped and damaged by these 40ft long vehicles that try to 
reverse down the road on both Brierley street and Rochdale lane, with no banksman 
present.

We could also do with the give way markings on the junction of Brierley st and Rochdale 
lane being re-introduced and a Give way sign putting up as the  many people that do not 
stop at this junction is ridiculous, there have been some near misses and it wont be long 
before something serious happens.

I hope you will take into account this appeal, as we do not need any more local business’s in 
Heywood to disappear

18

I am writing to object to the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane and Brierley 
Street.
 
I work at a local building company where we have limited parking on site and the introduction 
of these lines is clearly going to affect my ability and everyone who is office based to drive to 
work, as there will inevitably be no where to park. – This will ultimately lead to people looking 
for employment elsewhere probably outside of Heywood and Rochdale and take business 
away from the local area.
 
Surely who ever has raised the issue should have looked at any potential issues with parking 
prior to moving into the area or opening a business premises without the necessary access 
provisions needed to said business. 
 
Also if the issue relates to the newly refurbished flats / apartments, why was planning 

Page 36



permission granted in the first place, rather than looking back in retrospect?
 
I trust the above will be taken into account when making a final decision.

19

Further to your proposals to introduce parking restrictions on Brierley Street, Rochdale Lane 
and Smith Street Heywood OL10, I would like to confirm by opposition to this proposal.

I work at PLP Construction Limited and will be significantly impacted by your proposals as I 
will not be able to park outside the office I work in.  It will force me to park in front of local 
residents properties which will just move the parking issues you are envisaging rather than 
solve it.  This issue has arisen since the new apartments have been built on Brierley Street, 
which appear to have no parking provision?

I would appreciate some feedback on how this proposal was drawn up and who you 
discussed it with in the vicinity?

20

Further to your proposal to introduce parking restrictions on Rochdale Lane/ Brierley Street 
and Smith Street in Heywood OL10, I would like to strongly contest this as I am Managing 
Director of PLP Construction Ltd, Rochdale Lane, Heywood.  This will significantly impact my 
employees parking as we currently park on Rochdale Lane and on Brierley Street.  If this 
parking proposal is pushed through it will mean we will have no option but to park in front of 
residents properties on Brierley Street  and Rochdale Lane (top end), which will only 
exasperate the issue.

I would appreciate your feedback on which local businesses you sought consultation with 
prior to instigating these proposals?

21

To Traffic orders
We have had Tommy ‘s Fish&Chip Shop for26yrs and in all that time
we have improved the premises and employed many local residents and of course
our own family members,during this time we have had adverse works and parking problems 
thrown at us by the council,at detriment each time to our business,this new proposal will 
definitely put the final nail in our coffin.Not to mention the Problems you are going to cause 
to local residents.
      
22

I would like to appeal the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane and Brierley 
Street on the grounds that these restrictions would dramatically impact my family business 
Tommy’s chippy which is situated at the top of Rochdale Lane. These restrictions would limit 
the parking for customers and potentially force them park at the top of Rochdale Lane on the 
double yellow lines at the junction or force them to park over the road on Manchester Street 
meaning they would have to cross a busy main road. A girl a year and a half ago got 
knocked down attempting to come into our shop crossing that main road and we believe 
these restrictions would be putting customers in further danger. 

23

Dear Sir or Madam,
I would like to appeal against the proposed addition of double yellow lines parking 

Page 37



restrictions in Heywood. 
If this goes ahead it would greatly affect the small local family run business Tommy’s Chip 
Shop which has been there for decades. It is situated on the main road so needs 
somewhere close by for its patrons with cars to use. We are never there long so do not 
cause parking problems for the local residents.

24

You have already restricted access by putting double yellow lines at the top of the street , 
now you want to put down more. You are taking people's jobs away from them because it 
will badly affect our business. I totally oppose against the double yellow lines going down. 

25

To whom it may concern
As a local business owner I was appalled to be informed that you will be putting more red 
yellow lines close and behind another family run business Tommy’s fish and chip shop.
You have already surrounded our business with yellow lines making it impossible to do any 
loading.
It seems a different storey with no yellow lines a couple of yards away outside the local 
primary school Harwood Park, which I think would be more appropriate and safer for the 
children crossing as it is impossible to go down this road at school time with cars all double 
parked.
We have a small car park outside our property which for insurance reasons has to be kept 
closed at night. We are now having to leave it open so we can let the customers from 
Tommy’s to park.
We are all small local businesses soon Heywood will be a ghost town, as it seems 
everything is stacked against us to try to keep local businesses going.
I do hope you take note about  our concerns about these yellow lines .

26

To All concerned
 
Not sure why you are putting double yellow lines around this area which will effect Tommy’s 
Chippy. I think this place which has been locally owned for many years will end up closing if 
the yellow lines go ahead
 
Think of the local business please

27

Dear Traffic Orders,
I have been a loyal customer since childhood in Heywood. Tommy's is a SMALL BUSINESS, 
the council should support their local community and businesses, NOT PUSH THEM OUT 
OF TOWN!!
I feel by putting DOUBLE YELLOW LINES on the road around this small business, you will 
cause yet another business to close. Its a BRILLIANT CHIPPY. I suggest you take a hard 
think before doing this to the small town. 
I urge you not to do this, it is CRIPPLING THE TOWN. I didn't think you needed to put 
DOUBLE YELLOW LINES nect to the Clipper Cabin on Pilsworth Road. 
Listen to your local residents!!
Don't think I will get anywhere with this email. 
Just think before doing anything please. 

Page 38



28

Please no yellow lines, this will cause many accidents as customers try to cross the roads to 
get to Tommy’s Chippy.

29

I am writing to object to the proposed yellow lines on and around Brierley Street and 
Rochdale Lane, that will have a great impact on a small family run business that has been in 
the town for decades. The business and surrounding facilities will take a massive hit if the 
restrictions to parking are implemented.

Please support our small local businesses!  

30

Hello
I feel opposed to your intention to restrict parking near Tommys chippy, it's a very old and 
respected chip shop/café. I feel that the restrictions place a very negative threat to the 
business and even a possibility of the people around "Greentown" losing a very favoured 
and well liked chippy.
Would it/could it be possible to make Rochdale Lane a one way system or even a dead end 
to get around any parking problems you may have.
Thank you

31

I am writing regarding the above proposal to put double yellow lines around the only decent 
chip shop in Heywood.

Doing this serves no purpose except to destroy a business that’s been around since before I 
was born. 

The only reason you would do this is to make money. There’s no health and safety reasons 
for this. You will also be stopping people from parking in front of the houses in Rochdale 
lane. Whoever suggested this should hang their heads in shame.

32

Good morning 

I am writing to appeal against the yellow parking lines outside and around the area of 
Tommy's Chippy in Heywood.
This is a small family run business that will greatly suffer if these lines come into effect and 
restrict customer parking.

Please Support Local Businesses 

33

We use tommys chippy quite regularly it will be such a shame if you are putting double 
yellow lines there. In the present climate I thought that you would wanting to look after local 
businesses. 
Thanks

Page 39



34

To whom this may concern, 

I am sending this email today to oppose against double yellow lines outside Tommy’s chip 
shop, I feel it’s essential that no yellow lines are put in place as it will have severe 
consequences on the buisness in which has been at the pillar of a community for many 
years. With it also affecting the trading of the buisness there is also the people employed by 
the chip shop, which it could have consequences for please take this into consideration. 

35

To whom it may concern 

I am against putting yellow lines all over Heywood. It would be devastating to local 
businesses and customers that don’t have a car park local to their favourite 
shops/chippys/business. In all the years of working and living in Heywood I have never 
struggled to park so congestion isn’t the issue, so it’s clearly a ploy to penalise people for 
parking locally. Greed! 

36

Good morning 

I am writing to appeal against the yellow parking lines outside Tommy's chippy in Heywood. 
This is a small family run business that will take a massive hit if you restrict customer parking 
around there. Please support local businesses. 

37

Dear Sir/Madam,
I wish to express my concerns over the above issue regarding double yellow lines on 
Rochdale Lane and Brierly Street. I believe this would have a deterimental affect on the local 
business Tommy's Chippy. I feel that the council's perogative should be to support local 
business and ensure they can function to the best of their ability. Having nowhere to park for 
customers will certainly put many off from going to the chippy and spending money in their 
local community. 

38

I live above the chippy with my son and will have to cross a busy main road to be able to 
park and get access to my house. This isn’t safe for us to do so. 

39

To Whom It May Concern

I am writing to you with regards to the above proposed Traffic Order. 
Why oh why are you punishing a small business's. Tommys Chippy has been on the corner 
of Land End since time began, already having railings to around the pavement outside, the 
proposed double yellow lines will absolutely kill the business that the family have worked 
hard to succeed over many many years. The business has been in the family for over 60 
years, which is a rarity these days, you should be working with them not against them. 
There are residents in the area who will also fall foul of this proposal, where do they park - 
likely other areas which will cause more congestion on the main through road which is 
Manchester street / Road.

Page 40



Please reconsider this proposal, think about the smaller man, the reason behind the 
proposal are not just, the area is mainly residential rather than industrial.
Think of your routes to a time when there was corner shops and independent bossiness 
rather than multi million pound company who dont care!

Yours 

40

Dear Sir/ Madam 
I’m really concerned to here that you are putting double yellow lines around Tommy’s chippy 
in Heywood (H60/1291) I have been a customer for years I really don’t think there is any 
need. 
These poor people that have lived and worked around there for years and there has been no 
problems what so ever. Why now? I’m sure this will cause more problems on the main road. 
There will be no were to park in Heywood soon 

41

Good afternoon,
I am appealing against the decision of putting double yellow lines in the area outlined.
I am a Heywood resident with family living in this area. I frequently visit this area and there is 
consistently parking spaces available, as well as as ample space for lorries, trucks etc to 
manoeuvre in these places.
I feel if double yellow lines are placed then this will have a profoundly negative effect on local 
residents, including families with young children and those with mobility issues. Along with a 
negative effect on many local businesses, which are the lifeblood of our town.
Many thanks for your consideration

42

Hi, 

I am emailing to oppose the double yellow lines that are going to be put on Rochdale lane 
and brierley street. 

The chippy has been on Rochdale lane for around 60 years and now there will be an issue 
to park for not only customers but staff too. 

Thanks 

43

Ref-H60/1291

I am contacting you to appeal against the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale lane 
and Brierley street in Heywood.

I feel that these double yellow lines are unnecessary and will have an adverse affect on local 
businesses and residents.

Regards

44

To whom it may concern, 

Page 41



I am emailing to appeal the proposed double yellow lines that are to be situated around 
Rochdale Lane / Brierley street in Heywood as it is not a main road - like the old saying...if 
there isn’t a problem don’t try creating one .
There is not a good enough reason for the lines and all it will do is make it impossible for 
people like myself who do not live in walking distance to visit elderly relatives who rely on me 
, it will have a massive negative effect on local business which are located around that 
address, and local residents as well as creating extra congestion on the main roads .  
Please take my concerns into consideration. Maybe a slightly radical suggestion but rather 
than continually removing street parking/ free bay parking ( such as on hill street )  from the 
residents of Heywood and making our town even less desirable than it currently is maybe 
that time could be better spent filling in the massive pot holes that everywhere..

Kind Regards ,

45

To whom it may concern

I write to object to the proposed street parking restrictions Rochdale road, Brierly Street and 
Vale Street in Heywood.
As a frequent visitor to the area I am aware of the lack of parking spaces available when 
visiting local businesses and by restricting parking in this area will make it extremely difficult 
for me to park and in order to access these smaller businesses. This will impact not only 
businesses but also residents in the local area, restricting their access to their residence and 
their visitors.

Regards

46

I am emailing to protest about the proposal to put down double yellow lines on the street 
where i live and surrounding area. Why at this stage all of a sudden is it thought to be a good 
idea to restrict parking round this area which will make it even more of a nightmare for the 
long suffering residents on my street and surrounding ones. The main cause of the problem 
was the construction of the flats opposite on 
Rochdale Lane /Brierley St. Part of the development which was left unfinished which was 
down on the original planning proposals for parking, this was left derelict for some 18 months 
to 2 years as the company who owned the flats went into receivership. When the new 
owners took over the previously unfinished part of the building they were allowed to be 
converted into more flats which was never in the original plan and to my knowledge there 
was no public consultation over this to a change of usage from originally a car park to 
domestic dwellings.  Whose idea was this at the council to let this go through and what made 
the matter even worse is that not one of these new flats has an allocated parking space 
inside the complex. To my knowledge there is at least one of these flats where the 
occupants have 3 yes THREE cars to one flat, so guess where these vehicles' are parked. 
Just more problems created by the council and then more by proposing to put double 
yellows everywhere to try and cover another cock up, up. Whilst finishing off a local 
buisness' trade at the top of the street which would threaten it with certain closure. Well 
thought out.

47

I am writing to object to the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane and Brierley 
Street.

Page 42



I work at PLP Construction where we have limited parking on site and the introduction of 
these lines is clearly going to affect my ability and everyone who is office based to drive to 
work, as there will inevitably be no where to park. – This will ultimately lead to people looking 
for employment elsewhere probably outside of Heywood and Rochdale and take business 
away from the local area.

Surely who ever has raised the issue should have looked at any potential issues with parking 
prior to moving into the area or opening a business premises without the necessary access 
provisions needed to said business. – If the issue has been raised by a local business, I can 
only comment that the local business is still managing to operate, and while the parking 
situation may be a “hinderance” it is clearly not affecting the day to day operations of the 
business. The introduction of the parking restrictions on the other hand will lead to people 
leaving our business and could cause tremendous difficulties in the business continuing to 
operate. – This can also be said for a number of businesses in the areas such as the chip 
shop at the top of the road.

Also if the issue relates to the newly refurbished flats / apartments, why was planning 
permission granted in the first place, rather than looking back in retrospect?

I trust the above will be taken into account when making a final decision.

48

Objection to Proposed double yellow lines on rochdale lane and brierley street heywood.

There us no need for double yellows as there is no traffic flow problem on these streets in 
fact rochdale lane is a non through rd blocked a one end and services mainly residential. So 
there is very little traffic at all. The business at end of rochdale lane would suffer immensely 
if customers where unable to to stop to make there purchases.  and as there customers are 
only there lunch and dinner times it hardly constitutes a major bottleneck especailly as the 
road is a no through route anyway.
Crazy pointless and potentially damaging to business and residents

49

Dear sirs
I would like to register my objection to the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale Road 
and Brierley St. Proposal number above. 
I object on the grounds of being unable to park when I want to support the local business of 
Tommy's Chippy. I visit quite often and sometimes have my 85 year old mother with me who 
is unable to walk any distance. 
Rochdale Council should reconsider this proposal and instead consider the impact on a 
popular local business. In these times of big mega stores and establishments we should look 
to supporting the smaller, friendly local businesses. 
Yours sincerely 

50

Do you realise how this will effect the Community?  The sit in chip shot is a vital part of the 
community and supports many of the pensioners from the surrounding area that are able to 
drive there and sit in or have a fabulous take a way . I have noticed a lot of unabled people 
parking there and going in .  The only place to park would be the main road which is very 
dangerous and especially since there is no crossing near by.  

51

Page 43



To Whom It May Concern

I am writing to you with regards to the above proposed Traffic Order. 
Why oh why are you punishing a small business's. Tommys Chippy has been on the corner 
of Land End since time began, already having railings to around the pavement outside, the 
proposed double yellow lines will absolutely kill the business that the family have worked 
hard to succeed over many many years. The business has been in the family for over 60 
years, which is a rarity these days, you should be working with them not against them. 
There are residents in the area who will also fall foul of this proposal, where do they park - 
likely other areas which will cause more congestion on the main through road which is 
Manchester street / Road.
Please reconsider this proposal, think about the smaller man, the reason behind the 
proposal are not just, the area is mainly residential rather than industrial.
Think of your routes to a time when there was corner shops and independent bossiness 
rather than multi million pound company who dont care!

Yours 

52

I am writing to appeal against the proposed ban on parking, H60/12914 around Rochdale 
lane and Brierley Street in Heywood. We have a very popular and thriving Fish and Chip 
shop in that area that people travel to from quite a distance. It has been there for over sixty 
years which proves it's popularity but by one stroke of a council pen it will become isolated 
and no passing trade will be possible. We need to support family businesses, not condemn 
them. Heywood, like all local towns, is suffering a huge decline in footfall and needs to retain 
these personal, friendly shopkeepers, not drive them away.

53

Good evening

I have learn this evening that the council intend putting double yellow lines on the streets 
next to Tommy’s chippy in heywood.

As a loyal customer and fellow business owner in heywood I strongly object to this decision.  
It will affect business as there are no car parks nearby and Tommy’s has been a good 
established business for many years.

There should be no changes made so customers can park safely and shop at Tommy’s.  

Kind regards

54

I would like to object to the proposed installation of double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane 
and Brierley Street in Heywood. The long established business Tommy's chippy would suffer 
greatly if this went ahead. It is one of the most popular and well used of all Heywood 
chippies and this is in no small measure because of the ease of parking on nearby streets. 
In this day of High Street closures and online business taking over surely we must fight to 
preserve what thriving businesses we have in the town. Come on Rochdale, we pay our 
council taxes and should have a say in these matters. This would without a doubt be 
detrimental to the already run down town of Heywood which is still part of your borough, 
please don't do this.
Respectfully

Page 44



55

To whom it concerns,
Tommy's chip shop in Heywood is under threat of losing a lot of its business due to double 
yellow lines being put in around the area, meaning customers will NOT be able to park there, 
have you considered disabled and elderly customers??

Many people will go to the other chip shop  near Heywood market, "The Plaice to Eat".
This will be the death bell to a local family business that has been going for sixty years.There 
is parking on the market car park which will make it more appealing.

Please consider your actions before we lose yet another local business in Heywood.
Thank you.

Yours sincerely,

56

I wish to raise my objection to the above proposal as this will impact on the smaller 
Businesses in this area and also the public ability to use them.

The 3 businesses raising their objection have no grounds as stated there have been no 
injury accidents in the vicinity in at least the last 5 years.

57

Dear Mr Wilcock,

We are e-mailing you regarding the proposed waiting restrictions on Rochdale lane, Brierley 
street and Vale street, Heywood,

We have lived on Brierley street for 36 years and have never had the problems we are 
having now not being able to park outside our own home because of the amount of cars 
from surrounding businesses that park here. So if the restrictions were to be put in place the 
problem would be worse.

There has always been a truck business at the back of Brierley street and there has never 
been a problem with the trucks getting in and out.

We are really opposed to the waiting restrictions and would urge you to reconsider.

Yours sincerely,

58

I’m so saddened to hear you will be placing double yellow lines all around one of our oldest 
& much loved business in Heywood , I really do hope some common sense can be used 
here & you will rethink this ridiculous idea ref number H60/12914 leave it as it is or you will 
be upsetting most of the people of Heywood & putting a very well run & much lived business 
at risk of closing . 

H60/1291 we live on smith st heywood ever since those flats have been built there as been 
nothing but trouble with the parking now the other ones have been opened up as flats which 
should have been offices which is another matter they have nowhere to park and are parking 
in smith st and we carnt get in front of our own home so if this goes ahead with the lines 
were are all the others who move in the flats going to park they carnt park in the flats car 

Page 45



park as they are allocated to those who live in the ones that have been there a few years  so 
this is our case not to put the lines down yours
59

I would like to state my disapproval of the plans for the proposed double yellow lines in 
Heywood at Brierley street and Rochdale lane. I am looking at a house in the area and these 
plans would make the parking difficult also I go to Tommy’s fish and chip shop and if the 
plans are put in place then I wouldn’t be able to park.

60

I object to this heavy handed one sided proposal.
You are supposed to look after the "people" of this borough not just a minority of commercial 
vested interests.
People need to get to other commercial premises and residences in that area and your 
proposal with undoubtably just concentrate the parking near their premises and stangle their 
buisnesses that need "passing trade" like the chip shop at the end of Rochdale Lane.
Restricting parking on both sides of the streets for all daylight hours for six days a week is 
massively going over the top.
Surely you have the ability to work out a better solution than this so that "everyone" is 
considered.
Surely you should initially try a less sledge hammer solution:-
Limited parking to say 2 hours a time
Restrict parking to one sde of the street
Yours Sincerely

61

Quote H60/1291 Tommy?s Chippy, 

I?m emailing to you today to help Tommy?s chippy and to give you a reason for an appeal, 
please first take consideration off all the families who have been raised with Tommy?s 
Chippy as to you if may just be a Chippy a small business but to our community it is more, 
you may not see it but it brings happiness and love, to the community and has done for 60 
years! Putting double yellow lines will prevent costumers from coming with there family?s as 
they park there, what happens if someone with children in the car comes to the chippy? 
They have no where to park because you put double yellow lines there restricting them from 
the chippy to collect there order, and stopping a business by 70% a year, without the 
costumers ( drivable ones) the business will be no more and the love and care the 
community have learned and built will be nothing? So I?m asking you to bless reconsider the 
double yellow lines if not for the chippy for the family community we have created.

62

I object to the proposal of double yellow lines around the Rochdale lane and brierly street.
I can see no reason for this proposal as it is not a main road, no school nearby , no traffic 
problems etc etc ,residents and visitors live and visit this area and need somewhere to park. 
The flats and houses  that have been built in this area (and I presume passed by your own 
planning department) do not have enough parking so on road parking is essential, you will 
only be creating more problems elswhere.

63

In relation to yellow lines placed around Rochdale lane and Brierley st would seriously effect 
business of Tommy's chippy who I am a loyal customer of. I have to travel there by car and 
restrictions on parking would be a burden, you are placing to many parking restrictions in 

Page 46



Heywood when there is no call for it, it is not next to a school.

64

Further to your recent notice in the Heywood Advertiser detailing yellow lines you are 
proposing to introduce on Rochdale Lane, Brierley Street and Smith Street in Heywood 
OL10,  I would like to strongly object to this proposal.  

We have business premises on Rochdale Lane, Adapt Civils Ltd and directly employ staff 
from the local area, of which some are based in our offices.  If you introduce the parking 
restrictions you are proposing  this will mean that none of our employees are able to park 
their vehicles outside our office, as they do now.  We will then be forced to park in front of 
residents properties on Brierley Street and Rochdale Lane which will affect their parking.  It 
will also affect local businesses such as Tommy’s Chippy as their customers park on Brierley 
Street and Rochdale Lane.

If these proposals go ahead we will be forced to re-assess our current business premises 
and move outside of the Heywood area, currently our staff live locally and also generate 
money for the local economy using local amenities – Heywood town centre shops, gym, food 
stores, cafes etc.  This will reduce significantly if we move to other premises.

In proposing these changes you have not considered at all the impact this is going to have 
on local businesses and residents.

Regards.

65

I’m so saddened to hear you will be placing double yellow lines all around one of our oldest 
& much loved business in Heywood , I really do hope some common sense can be used 
here & you will rethink this ridiculous idea ref number H60/1291 leave it as it is or you will be 
upsetting most of the people of Heywood & putting a very well run & much lived business at 
risk of closing . 

66

Re ref for proposal of double yellow lines at side of Tommy’s chip shop Heywood ref is H60/ 
1291. Please reconsider as another small business could be forced to close Regards Sharon

Another business is going to be lost in Heywood if the double yellow lines go ahead at the 
side of Tommy’s chip shop Brierley St Heywood. Rochdale should be supporting small 
businesses not pushing them away please reconsider. Regards

67

Dear Sir/Madam,

I have just heard about your plan for double yellow lines at the above location.

I strongly object to this and would like to know the reasoning behind this stupid proposal.

This location is not even a busy road normally and there are yellow lines at the junction with 
Manchester Street already.

I would suggest that the planners got it wrong when they failed to allow for sufficient parking 
for the recently developed flats.

Page 47



The chip shop is a popular well established business and to deter custom away from it is 
absurd.

Think again and put the yellow paint where it is needed and get more police and traffic 
wardens away from Rochdale and into Heywood.The coucil tax covers Heywood as well you 
know.

68

Dear sir. Re double yellow lines round Tommy’s Chip Shop, l am very sad that you are 
thinking about doing this, this will mean yet another business closing down in Heywood, we 
are almost a ghost town as it is, this business has served Heywood for many many years, 
Very disappointed in Rochdale Councils.  Mrs Whitworth-Hilton .Heywood.

69

To Whom It May Concern,

Wrt H60/1291, I would like to oppose the proposed TRO on Rochdale Lane & Brierley Street 
Heywood.  If the proposed prohibition of waiting plan is put in place it will merely relocate the 
issue of parked cars to another location.  In my view the issue with parked cars will be 
pushed further down Brierley Street.  Gilwood relies on clear access during business hours 
for heavy good vehicles to deliver raw materials and for us to deliver heavy industrial 
engineering projects to our customers.  If the proposed plan is implemented it has the 
potential to severely impact our business operations and for that reason I oppose the 
scheme. 

Best regards,

70

Hi 

We would like to appeal against the double yellow lines which are planned for Rochdale 
Lane and Brierley Street.  As a small business owner this will have a knock on effect to our 
business due to the already limited parking.  If the Tommy’s chippy customers and local 
workers who currently park on Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street start to park outside our 
shop our customers will have nowhere to park.

Thank you 

71

Dear Sir/Madam,
     I am writing to you about my concerns for the proposed double yellow lines to be put on 
Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street.
     I believe that these measures will cause disruption and stress to many of the occupants 
of this community. All the staff at the two businesses where the no parking is proposed will 
have to find new parking areas, the occupants of the Gateway's new flats (where no parking 
has not been provided) will have to find new parking areas. This will inevitably be on Brierley 
Street and Smith Street and will cause much congestion for most of the day. That in-
conjunction with the customers at meal times from Tommy's Chippie will cause stress and 
anger amongst all of the local residents. 
    The yard that SRB use now was not designed to take the traffic that it takes these days 
and the same goes for the deliveries to Gilwoods and UK Granite (which both cause me and 

Page 48



my neighbours a great deal of stress). With your new parking proposals this will just be 
made worse as people will be parking and blocking the roads at the residential part of 
Brierley Street.
    Also is it not unfair that for the sake of one business (SRB) another business (Tommy's 
Chippie) can be put in jeopardy? Tommy's has been a part of this community for as long as i 
can remember and i believe it is a disgrace that a new company such as SRB can come in 
an request such disruptive changes.

Yours Sincerely,

72

Good Day
With reference to H60/1291
Come on, have a heart. You surely don’t want it on your conscience? Think of all the 
starving people of Heywood and rethink this cruel plan you have for not allowing parking 
outside the best chippy in town. Tommy’s chippy is the most popular in Heywood and if you 
would only give it a try you’ll agree and never want to go anywhere else again for your 
‘puddin’ chips n  peas on a tray with gravy’. 
Kind regards 

73

This would be very bad for the chippy and would be very unfortunate for both the customers 
and the owners. You would essentially be killing a family run business by slowly killing off its 
supply of income. 
I am therefor adding my name to the appeal against the implementation of yellow lines being 
put on the roads here.  

74

Appeal against the proposed double yellow lines on Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street in 
Heywood.
I am an HGV delivery driver and have never had any issues in this area with parked vehicle's

75

Dear Sir/Madam,

I am contacting you to voice my displeasure at the council’s proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order H60/1291.

I am an employee at PLP Construction, situated on the intersection of Brierley Street and 
Rochdale Lane. Given the very limited availability for parking in this area, the proposed 
restrictions would result in all of the employees of the company being unable to park near 
the business, if at all anywhere reasonably near the currently situated premises.  If this 
proposal goes ahead, due to the resulting unavailability of parking, I will be forced to look for 
employment elsewhere. Furthermore, I will ensure that wherever I do decide to relocate, that 
it will be to a business that is not situated in the borough of Rochdale. 

In relation to the Statement of Reason given, I feel that no matter what restrictions are put 
into place, the roads will not be suitable for HGV’s under any circumstances. Car owners 
that currently park in the areas subject to this regulation order have always taken care to 
park away from corners and intersections (even though this is currently not a restriction) to 
try and assist those business reliant on HGV’s as much as possible. Despite this fact, the 
vast majority of HGV’s struggle to negotiate these roads given that they were likely not 

Page 49



designed to accommodate the large articulated lorries that unfortunately frequent this area. 
Notwithstanding the previously stated assistance that car owners have always given to this 
end, the careless and often downright recklessness of some of the HGV drivers has resulted 
in damage to these cars and all in circumstances where they could not have been deemed 
to have been obstructing access to said businesses. 

If this regulation order was to go ahead, it would only assist in alleviating what could best be 
described as an inconvenience for those businesses that require regular HGV deliveries to 
their premises. However, for a company like PLP, with its employees being unable to park 
anywhere reasonably close to their place of work, it could sensibly be considered a much 
more serious issue, with the vast majority of its employees likely to reconsider their options 
of employment in the Rochdale area as a direct result of your proposal. 

In summary, I would implore those of you who are set to put this proposal into place to 
seriously consider the issues I have raised above before putting anything into action. 

Kind Regards,

76

Hi,
I am e-mailing you today in reference to the proposal of double yellow lines in which may be 
down Brierley St, Rochdale rd leading to Vale st.
I live at 31 Brierley St, with my 3 children and partner.  We as car owners who own 2 cars 
feel strongly against the double yellow lines being put down.
I have lived on Brierley st since I was born with my mum and dad who live  at no 25, until I 
moved in with my partner to 31. I have never have come across such problems with parking 
and traffic like we are experiences until SRB have moved in.
There are over 3/4 cars parked opposite my house on the other side of the street, one in 
particular which I have attached photo leaves his car parked there for up to 4/5 days at a 
time and as you will see from the picture he is parked half way on the curb which is 
obstructing to push chair/ wheelchair users passing by which means they have to go to the 
road which if you see there aren't any lowered curbs to access the Main road.
Many cars that belong to SRB employees are parked down by rochdale rd leading to vale 
street, or parked on Brierley street. If double yellow lines are to be put down, this means and 
more cars belonging to SBR will be parking on Brierley St which will block home owners 
parking near their properties. 
On many occasions I do not get access to park my car near my house, which means I have 
to park down by the end off the street near Gilwoods fabrication on Bradshaw Street. This 
means that when I have a car full off shopping with my children alone I have to either leave 
my car unattended unlocked to get my shopping into my house which means my house is 
unattended and unlocked and my children are put in danger while I transfer my shopping 
across.
Also there are times in which SRB are transporting heavy duty loads down the street which 
impacts on the properties wear and tear due the vibration from the heavy loads and is mostly 
inches away from scratching home owners cars which are parked near there own properties
By putting yellow lines down this will also affect the local chip shop which has been trading 
for over 70 years. The customers will have nowhere to park which will mean the local family 
ran busy will have to close down! 
I am not against SRB trading but double yellow  lines mixed with the very heavy loads in 
which are being transported isn't suitable for this area.
I attached some pictures as evidence. The  blue car obstructing walkers and cars parked on 
left hand side of which are belonging to SRB not Brierley street home owners.
Yours faithfully 

Page 50



Just wanted to say that traffic orderH60/1291 for proposed yellow lines on Rochdale lane 
and Brierley street is ridiculous and would affect the business that is Tommy’s chippy,it is a 
very popular shop and is always busy and it would be a detriment if people can’t park ,there 
iis limited parking as it is so this could badly affect their business Yours.

77

Dear Traffic Orders Department. 

I have just become aware of your plans to introduce double yellow lines to Rochdale Lane 
and Brierley Street in Heywood and I would like to forward my disappointment and dismay in 
this proposal.  

I'm a frequent customer of  my favourite chippy on Manchester Road called Tommy's Chippy 
and use these proposed side roads to park while I visit the chippy with my family. It's a safe 
place to park up especially with young children . 
 
Obviously if this proposal was approved it would certainly hinder myself and other customers 
of our favourite chippy and potentially forcing the decline of this family business.  

Your potential actions will have a detrimental effect on this business and potentially safety 
issues for their customers in finding alternative parking areas. 

I assume your proposal had studied the potential effect to this business before issuing this 
formal proposal and have turned a blind eye to their plight .

Could you advise your plans to safeguard, maintain and help grow this businesses 
development. 

I await your response. 

78

I wish to complain about the above as all parked cars that have the run of Rochdale 
lane/Vale st/Brierley st at the moment as well as lorries, artics, delivery vans, bin collectors 
,etc will now have to park outside the 12 houses at the one end of Brierley Street as well as 

Page 51



3 at the other.This will cause problems for the car residents especialy us as we have a blue 
badge.For years now the traffic outside these properties has got progresivly worse .The 
street most days at the moment is congested with cars parked up for the workers at the 
number of factories that are around here . As well as through traffic from cars vans lorries 
articulated lorries .It is an accident waiting to happen .The residential area which will become 
the only area to park will only make the problem so much worse .The street was never 
designed for the massive lorries that deliver

79

Good Day
With reference to H60/1291
Come on, have a heart. You surely don’t want it on your conscience? Think of all the 
starving people of Heywood and rethink this cruel plan you have for not allowing parking 
outside the best chippy in town. Tommy’s chippy is the most popular in Heywood and if you 
would only give it a try you’ll agree and never want to go anywhere else again for your 
‘puddin’ chips n  peas on a tray with gravy’. 
Kind regards 

80

Dear Sir/Madam,
     I am writing to you about my concerns for the proposed double yellow lines to be put on 
Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street.
     I believe that these measures will cause disruption and stress to many of the occupants 
of this community. All the staff at the two businesses where the no parking is proposed will 
have to find new parking areas, the occupants of the Gateway's new flats (where no parking 
has not been provided) will have to find new parking areas. This will inevitably be on Brierley 
Street and Smith Street and will cause much congestion for most of the day. That in-
conjunction with the customers at meal times from Tommy's Chippie will cause stress and 
anger amongst all of the local residents. 
    The yard that SRB use now was not designed to take the traffic that it takes these days 
and the same goes for the deliveries to Gilwoods and UK Granite (which both cause me and 
my neighbours a great deal of stress). With your new parking proposals this will just be 
made worse as people will be parking and blocking the roads at the residential part of 
Brierley Street.
    Also is it not unfair that for the sake of one business (SRB) another business (Tommy's 
Chippie) can be put in jeopardy? Tommy's has been a part of this community for as long as i 
can remember and i believe it is a disgrace that a new company such as SRB can come in 
an request such disruptive changes.

Yours Sincerely,

81

I wish to complain about the above as all parked cars that have the run of Rochdale 
lane/Vale st/Brierley st at the moment as well as lorries, artics, delivery vans, bin collectors 
,etc will now have to park outside the 12 houses at the one end of Brierley Street as well as 
3 at the other.This will cause problems for the car residents especialy us as we have a blue 
badge.For years now the traffic outside these properties has got progresivly worse .The 
street most days at the moment is congested with cars parked up for the workers at the 
number of factories that are around here . As well as through traffic from cars vans lorries 
articulated lorries .It is an accident waiting to happen .The residential area which will become 
the only area to park will only make the problem so much worse .The street was never 
designed for the massive lorries that deliver 

Page 52



82

North Heywood Councillors,
 
I am writing on behalf of the Killackey family, who own and run Tommy’s Chippy on 
Manchester Road, to vehemently oppose the proposed parking restrictions for Rochdale 
Lane and Brierley Street - having only been made aware of these plans yesterday (by 
another opposing local business).
 
This family business has been established for 27 YEARS, through thick and thin and the 
loyal support of customers, many of whom travel miles to visit the shop. As well as 
employing many local residents, this business also supports three separate households 
within the Killackey family. This haulage company has been running for 7 years and while we 
support local businesses having ease of access, the severity of these restrictions – and let’s 
be frank here – sheer favouritism you have shown these businesses whilst completely 
discounting others is verging on discrimination. 
 
As a champion of local business for 27 years, the Killackey family are not against easing 
access for the goods vehicles, but where is the compromise? In email correspondence with 
PLP Construction, Mr Cowell states ‘Businesses have a right to use these roads to access 
their own premises’. What about businesses whose use of these roads have a direct impact 
on their business?? A chippy is a drop-in, drop-out business – without ease of access, you 
are prohibiting this which will ultimately lead to the decline of the business and closure. Our 
number one question to you as the enforcer of these restrictions is, where do you propose 
we advise customers to park?????
 
It is abhorrent that LOCAL councils, who are supposed to hold the interests of ALL residents 
and businesses at the forefront of everything they do, are destroying the fabric of our LOCAL 
businesses who have worked tirelessly to establish a business that will be ruined by the lack 
of consideration, intelligence and local insight you have demonstrated in these plans. 
 
Maybe if you had given proper consideration to the parking situation before approving 
the development of The Gateway this situation could have been avoided completely. 
 
Together with other local businesses, we would welcome a meeting (one in which we are 
aware of this time) to discuss this in more detail, which we feel is the least we are owed. In 
the meantime, we will lobby support to challenge and fight these restrictions at every 
juncture. 

Petition Heading

(548 signatures)

Page 53



APPENDIX C – Response to Objections

There are competing demands for on-street parking spaces in this area given its 
location near to residential property, businesses and the town centre. The Council 
appreciate that the availability of parking in areas such as this is important and will 
always try to maintain parking where possible. However, the areas of highway that 
the objectors wish to remain un-restricted have been the subject of complaints from 
several businesses in relation to goods vehicle access.

Although residents and some businesses may be affected by a proposal in terms of 
their parking arrangements, it should also be borne in mind that the only right the 
general public has on the highway is the right of passage along it. The Council is not 
responsible for creating or maintaining on-street parking places for residents or 
businesses. The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of 
care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and to maintain the expeditious 
movement of traffic, which has to take precedence over the provision of on-street 
parking places.

Residents believe that the roads in the area are unsuitable for goods vehicles and 
that they should not be inconvenienced by proposals aimed at improving access for 
businesses. However, the property in the area is a mix of both residential properties 
and established businesses who have a right of access along the highway.

The signatories on the petition and the majority of objectors are customers of the 
local fish and chip shop located on the corner of Manchester Street and Brierley 
Street, the owners of which believe that the proposed restrictions will severely affect 
their business in terms of the availability of on-street spaces for customers. At the 
junction of Manchester Street and Rochdale Lane there are existing no waiting at 
any time restrictions to protect the junction, the closest of the proposed restrictions is 
around 30 metres from the shop at the junction of Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street 
reflecting the Highway Code. Between these junctions both sides of Rochdale Lane 
remain unregulated. It is not clear if the restrictions would have a major impact on 
the business during their operating hours. 

The Committee should be mindful that not all objectors may have been aware of the 
scheme detail before responding. The high number of signatures obtained on the 
petition and comments received by some objectors would suggest that some were 
not aware that the proposals were some distance from the shop. It should also be 
borne in mind that petitions against traffic orders are considered less influential due 
to the ease in which signatures can often be attained, difficulties in verifying 
signatories, how influential or persuasive a lead petitioner may be and how 
influenced an individual may be.

In considering the scheme attention should be given to the road safety benefits of 
the restrictions around the junctions, which improve visibility for motorists and 
pedestrians negotiating them.

The Committee could consider relaxing the proposals to allow parking on certain 
sections of the restrictions outside of normal business operating hours, but this 
would require the proposals to be re-drafted and re-advertised, incurring additional 
costs which would have to be covered by the Committee. Maintaining a level of 

Page 54



protection around junctions based on guidance in the Highway Code should be 
considered in any amendments.

In summary, the Council believe that the restrictions are justified to support and 
protect access rights along the highway. However, given the number of objections 
received, the Committee may wish to relax the proposals in liaison with the business 
owners whom that made the initial request to solve the obstructive parking issues. 
Although members should be mindful that any relaxation should not compromise 
access or the safety of road users.

Page 55


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Objections to Traffic Order - Rochdale Road East, Heywood
	9 Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street, Heywood

